
 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend committee meetings. However, occasionally, committees 
may have to consider some business in private. Copies of agendas, minutes and reports are available 
on request in Braille, in large print, on audio tape, on computer disk or in other languages. 

 

Healthier Communities Select Committee 
Agenda 

 
Tuesday, 3 September 2019 
7.30 pm,  
Civic Suite 
Lewisham Town Hall 
London SE6 4RU 
 
For more information contact:  John Bardens (02083149976) 
 

Part 1 
 
Item  Pages 

 
1.   Minutes of the meeting held on 25 June 2019 

 
3 - 8 

2.   Declarations of interest 
 

9 - 12 

3.   Responses from Mayor and Cabinet 
 

13 - 24 

4.   Asset-based approach to adult social care 
 

25 - 36 

5.   Budget cuts 
To follow. 

 

6.   Select Committee work programme 
 

37 - 54 

7.   Referrals to Mayor and Cabinet 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

Healthier Communities Select Committee 
Members 

 
 
Members of the committee, listed below, are summoned to attend the meeting to be held 
on Tuesday, 3 September 2019.   
 
Janet Senior, Acting Chief Executive 
Friday, 23 August 2019 
 
  

Councillor John Muldoon (Chair)  

Councillor Coral Howard (Vice-Chair)  

Councillor Tauseef Anwar  

Councillor Peter Bernards  

Councillor Colin Elliott  

Councillor Aisling Gallagher  

Councillor Octavia Holland  

Councillor Olurotimi Ogunbadewa  

Councillor Jacq Paschoud  

Councillor Kim Powell  

Councillor Bill Brown (ex-Officio)  

Councillor Sakina Sheikh (ex-Officio)  

  

   



1 
 

MINUTES OF THE HEALTHIER COMMUNITIES 

SELECT COMMITTEE 

Tuesday 25 June 2019, 7.30pm 

Present: Councillors John Muldoon (Chair), Coral Howard (Vice Chair), Tauseef Anwar, Peter 

Bernards, Olurotimi Ogunbadewa, Colin Elliot, Jacq Paschoud, Octavia Holland.  

Apologies: Cllr Aisling Gallagher, and Nigel Bowness (Healthwatch Lewisham) 

Also Present: Kenneth Gregory (Joint Commissioning Lead, Adult Mental Health), Donna 

Hayward-Sussex (Service Director, SLaM), Ben Travis (Chief Executive, LGT), Diana 

Braithwaite (Director of Primary Care and Commissioning. Lewisham CCG), Ashley 

O’Shaughnessy (Deputy Director of Primary Care, Lewisham CCG), Simon Parton (Chair, 

Lewisham Local Medical Committee), Catherine Bunten (Service Manager, CYP Joint 

Commissioning), Tom Brown (Executive Director of Community Services), Georgina Nunney 

(Principal Lawyer), and John Bardens (Scrutiny Manager). 

1. Minutes of the meeting held on 14 May 2019 

1.1 The committee agreed the below addition to the minutes of item 4 reflecting that the 

council’s work on BAME mental health inequalities has so far been focused on adults.  

 There was reference to children’s services at the BAME mental health summit, but the 

primary focus of the work on BAME mental health inequalities in the initial stages has been 

on services for adults. The next stage will be about how to integrate this work with the work 

relating to children.     

Resolved: the minutes were agreed as a true record with the above changes. 

2. Declarations of interest 

2.1 There were no declarations of interest. 

3. Responses from Mayor and Cabinet 

3.1 The committee noted that Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust had agreed to 

accommodate the health visitor cut from their overheads and asked if this would affect 

other parts of the service. 

3.2 The committee were informed that the cut would be taken against management 

overheads, such as payroll, HR, and back-office functions, and that it would not impact 

on health visitor posts. It was also noted that this is a one-year arrangement, which will 

need to be re-visited. 

Resolved: the committee noted the M&C response. 

 

 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



2 
 

4. Mental Health Alliance 

Kenneth Gregory (Joint Commissioning Lead, Adult Mental Health) and Donna Hayward-

Sussex (Service Director, SLaM) introduced the report. The following key points were noted: 

4.1 The alliance contracting model has been developing across health and social care over 

a number of years. It is a way to think about how health and social care services could 

be re-designed to meet agreed outcomes across a range of health and care partners.  

4.2 The Lewisham Health and Care Partnership are using the alliance contracting model 

in two key pathways: Care at Home and Mental Health. The “shadow” mental health 

provider alliance commenced in April 2019.  

4.3 The shadow alliance covers all working age adult (18-65) mental health services in 

Lewisham commissioned by the Council, Lewisham Clinical Commissioning Group 

(CCG) or South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust (SLaM).  

4.4 The shadow alliance is underpinned by a memorandum of understanding. The formal 

alliance will require a formal agreement with a single outcomes framework against 

which all partners will be held to account. The alliance is expected to be formalised by 

April 2020. 

4.5 The mental health alliance has enabled local partners involved in mental health to work 

together to agree a set of priorities and key objectives to tackle mental health 

inequalities.  

4.6 Priorities include bringing physical and mental health closer together and focusing on 

prevention to reduce pressure on urgent care pathways. It was noted that people 

experiencing mental health crisis need to be able to access services at a primary care 

level rather than hospital A&E departments. 

4.7 The next stage of the alliance’s work will include redesigning community mental health 

services, with an emphasis on improving access to psychological services, particularly 

for the BAME population. 

4.8 The committee expressed concern about people being able to access mental health 

services at a primary care level when the primary care sector is in crisis. 

4.9 In recognition of the pressure that all services are under, alliance partners are working 

together to move resources into the right place and integrating secondary care mental 

health staff, such as community psychiatric nurses, for example, into primary care.  

4.10 Design groups of operational staff, service users, and carers have been formed to 

discuss what needs to change and redesign services. 

4.11 The recommendations coming out of the Council’s work on BAME mental health 

inequalities will be incorporated into the development of the mental health alliance. 

Resolved: the committee noted the report and requested that future reports be written in 

clearer language with shorter sentences so that the information is easier to understand 

Page 4



3 
 

5. Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust CQC inspection 

Ben Travis (Chief Executive, LGT) introduced the report. The following key points were 

noted: 

5.1 The Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust (LGT) received a rating of “requires 

improvement” in its latest CQC inspection. The CQC noted that the Trust had made a 

number of improvements since its last inspection and highlighted a number of key 

areas for action, including workforce and medicine management. 

5.2 The Trust has published a road map, which includes plans to improve the workforce 

culture. It wants to become an attractive place to work and reduce staff vacancies and 

increase staff retention. It has been running career clinics for staff and providing flexible 

working, and the voluntary turnover rate has been coming down. The Trust’s road map 

aspires for the whole Trust to achieve a rating of “good” by 2020.  

5.3 The committee had a number of queries in relation to workforce. The committee asked 

about the staffing levels for clinical and non-clinical staff, in particular nursing, medical 

and surgical staff; whether the threat of Brexit has had an impact; and whether any 

staff were leaving service because of pension overfunding. 

5.4 The Trust has seen a consistent pattern of net joiners in nursing. It has carried out 

career clinics to improve retention and successfully recruited from overseas, including 

the Philippines and India. It was noted that the retention rate of overseas staff is much 

better than the standard retention rate. 

5.5 The Trust struggles with recruitment and retention of middle-grade doctors. It has been 

engaging with its medical workforce to better understand what keeps them in a role 

and how the Trust can provide support. 

5.6 The Trust has not seen a significant decline in its EU workforce. It has written to every 

EU member of staff to reassure them and offered to pay the registration fee for the 

Government’s EU settlement scheme. 8% of the Trust’s workforce is from the EU. 

5.7 Pensions overfunding is an ongoing issue which the Government is currently 

consulting on. Some senior medical colleagues of a higher grade with many years of 

service feel like they no longer have the incentive to work additional shifts as it will 

sometimes cost them money and some staff are looking to reduce their hours. 

5.8 The committee expressed concern about the Trust’s “safe” and “effective” ratings and 

noted that the Trust has been struggling with medicine management for some time. 

5.9 The main area of action within the “safe” rating is medicine management in surgical 

areas. Medicine management is an area the Trust has struggled to improve. It involves 

activities such as checking fridge temperatures and making sure that medicine 

cabinets are locked. The Trust is working with staff to ensure that everyone 

understands the importance of consistency with basic checks like this.  

5.10 The main area of concern relating to the “effective” rating is an increase in readmission 

rates for surgical patients. 

Page 5



4 
 

5.11 The committee expressed concern about the Trust’s ratings for “medical care (inc older 

people)” and “End of Life care”. The committee noted that there had been some 

criticism of older people’s experience in hospital. 

5.12 The committee noted that the Trust had not been dealing with complaints on time. The 

Trust has carried out workshops on the complaints process and spoken to 

complainants about their experiences. The Trust is aiming to deal with people’s 

concerns more proactively, before they become a formal complaint. 

Resolved: the committee noted the report and agreed to receive a future report on the 

Trust’s road map.  

6. Primary care CQC inspections 

Diana Braithwaite (Director of Primary Care and Commissioning, Lewisham CCG) 

introduced the report. The following key points were noted: 

6.1 The two CQC inspections detailed in the report are the first GP practices in 

Lewisham to have been rated as “inadequate”.  

6.2 Available data (including the GP patient survey) did not indicate that the practices 

were not providing high quality services or good patient experience. Both practices 

had previously been rated as “good” by the CQC. 

6.3 It was noted that many of the issues identified by the CQC were related to systems 

and processes which can be severely impacted by not having a practice manager in 

post.  

6.4 It was noted that CQC inspections have become much more rigorous and some 

practices may not be fully prepared. One Health Lewisham, the Lewisham GP 

Federation, is looking into how it can support practices with future inspections and 

share best practice. The CCG is also looking at how it can support practices.  

6.5 The CCG confirmed that there was no indication of any trend/pattern with the two 

practices being rated as inadequate within days of each other and that this was 

considered a coincidence. 

Resolved: The committee noted the report. 

7. Early help review 

Catherine Bunten (Service Manager, CYP Joint Commissioning) introduced the report. The 

following key points were noted: 

7.1 The services covered by the council’s Early Help Review that relate to the council’s 

public health functions are the health visiting service, the school health service, and 

the young persons health and wellbeing service. 

7.2 Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust deliver the health visiting and school health 

services. The Family Health Nurse Team will be made up of either qualified health 

visitors or qualified school health nurses. The team will be focused on a defined 

cohort of children to make more efficient use of staff and resources and develop 

Page 6



5 
 

better relationships with families. All staff would be qualified for the services they 

were delivering. 

7.3 The committee requested information on additional training staff would be receiving. 

7.4 The committee asked if there were likely to be further cuts to the health visiting and 

other public health functions and whether there would be scope to supplement the 

public health grant with council funding to protect services such as health visiting. 

7.5 Officers noted that, as well as the possibility of further cuts to the public health grant, 

there was also a proposal for a cut to the CYP directorate budget, which would, if 

applied, likely fall on children’s centres and youth services. 

7.6 It is not clear where any additional money could come from. The focus is on how to 

work in partnership with providers to deal with the impact of two cuts for services for 

0-5 year-olds, given that it’s such a crucial time for child development and wellbeing. 

Resolved: the committee noted the report. 

8. Select Committee work programme 

John Bardens (Scrutiny Manager) introduced the work programme. 

The committee made the following comments and suggestions: 

6.1 The committee discussed meeting start times and agreed to continue with a 7.30pm 

start time. 

6.2 The committee noted that a report on meeting the public sector equality duty had 

recently been published by South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust which 

focused on Lewisham ethnicity information.  The committee discussed including this 

on the work programme. 

6.3 The committee requested an update on the Children and Young People’s Strategic 

Partnership Board’s (CYPSPB) consideration of BME access to mental health services 

at its June meeting. 

Resolved: the Committee noted the work programme. 

9. Referrals to Mayor and Cabinet 

There were no referrals. 

The meeting ended at 21.25pm 

Chair:  

 ---------------------------------------------------- 

Date: 

 ---------------------------------------------------- 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Healthier Communities Select Committee 

Title Declaration of interests 

Contributor Chief Executive Item 2 

Class Part 1 (open) 3 September 2019 

 
Declaration of interests 
 
Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the 
agenda. 
 
1. Personal interests 
 

There are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s Member 
Code of Conduct: 
 
(1) Disclosable pecuniary interests 
(2) Other registerable interests 
(3) Non-registerable interests 

 
2. Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined by regulation as:- 
 

(a) Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or 
gain 

 
(b) Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 

by the Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in the 
register in respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a 
member or towards your election expenses (including payment or financial 
benefit  from a Trade Union). 

 
(c) Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they 

are a partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the 
securities of which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for goods, 
services or works. 

 
(d) Beneficial interests in land in the borough. 
 
(e) Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more. 
 
(f) Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the 

Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a 
partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of 
which they have a beneficial interest.   

 
(g)  Beneficial interest in securities of a body where: 
 

(a) that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land 
in the borough;  

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



(b) and either 
 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person* has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued 
share capital of that class. 

 
*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person with 
whom they live as spouse or civil partner.  

 
3.  Other registerable interests 

 
The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register the 
following interests:- 

 
(a) Membership or position of control or management in a body to which you 

were appointed or nominated by the Council 
(b) Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to charitable 

purposes, or whose principal purposes include the influence of public 
opinion or policy, including any political party 

(c) Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an 
estimated value of at least £25 

 
4. Non registerable interests 

 
Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be likely 
to affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close associate more 
than it would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area generally, but which is 
not required to be registered in the Register of Members’ Interests (for example a 
matter concerning the closure of a school at which a Member’s child attends).  

  
5.  Declaration and Impact of interest on members’ participation 

 
 (a)  Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are 

present at a meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must 
declare the nature of the interest at the earliest opportunity and in any 
event before the matter is considered. The declaration will be recorded in 
the minutes of the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable pecuniary interest 
the member must take not part in consideration of the matter and withdraw 
from the room before it is considered. They must not seek improperly to 
influence the decision in any way. Failure to declare such an interest 
which has not already been entered in the Register of Members’ 
Interests, or participation where such an interest exists, is liable to 
prosecution and on conviction carries a fine of up to £5000  
 

 (b)  Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a 
disclosable pecuniary interest they must still declare the nature of the 
interest to the meeting at the earliest opportunity and in any event before 
the matter is considered, but they may stay in the room, participate in 

Page 10



consideration of the matter and vote on it unless paragraph (c) below 
applies. 

 
(c) Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a 

disclosable pecuniary interest, the member must consider whether a 
reasonable member of the public in possession of the facts would think 
that their interest is so significant that it would be likely to impair the 
member’s judgement of the public interest. If so, the member must 
withdraw and take no part in consideration of the matter nor seek to 
influence the outcome improperly. 

 
 (d)  If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a 

member, their, family, friend or close associate more than it would affect 
those in the local area generally, then the provisions relating to the 
declarations of interest and withdrawal apply as if it were a registerable 
interest.   

 
(e) Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s 

personal judgement, though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek the 
advice of the Monitoring Officer. 

 
6. Sensitive information  

 
There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests. These are interests the 
disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk of violence or 
intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such interest need not 
be registered. Members with such an interest are referred to the Code and 
advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance. 

 
7. Exempt categories 
 

There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in 
decisions notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing so. 
These include:- 

 
(a) Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the matter 

relates to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears exception) 
(b) School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a parent 

or guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor unless 
the matter relates particularly to the school your child attends or of which 
you are a governor;  

(c) Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt 
(d) Allowances, payment or indemnity for members  
(e) Ceremonial honours for members 
(f) Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception) 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 
1. Purpose 

1.1 To report to members the response given at the Health and Wellbeing Board to 
recommendations made by the Committee on 14 May 2019 regarding BAME mental 
health inequalities. 
 

2. Recommendations 

2.1 The Committee is recommended to receive the Board’s response to their referral. 
 

3. Background 

3.1 The Health and Wellbeing Board considered the Committee’s referral at its meeting on 
11 July 2019. The Committee referred its views to the Health and Wellbeing Board in 
the following terms: 

 
The committee requests that progress of the work on BAME Mental Health 
inequalities is set out, with clear timelines, responsibilities and proposed 
actions, in line with our commitments in the new corporate strategy, for both 
adults and children and young people. 

 
4. Response by the Health and Wellbeing Board  

4.1 At the same meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board on 11 July 2019, the Board 
received a report from the Director of Public Health, updating them on developments 
that have taken place over the past year to address BAME health inequalities in 
Lewisham and to request Board approval for the suggested approach and planned 
actions for 2019/20 onwards.  

4.2 The Board agreed that this report should comprise their formal response to the 
Committee’s referral. As such it is attached as Appendix A. 

 
Originator 

If you have any queries on this report, please contact Stewart Weaver-Snellgrove, 
Principal Officer, 020 8314 9308.    
 
 

Healthier Communities Select Committee 
  

Title 
  

Response from the Health and Wellbeing Board to referral by the 
Healthier Communities Select Committee on BAME mental health 
inequalities 

Key Decision 
  

No Item No. 3 

Ward 
  

All 

Contributors 
  

Director of Public Health 
 

Class 
  

Part 1 Date: 3 September 2019 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



Appendix A: 
 

Health & Wellbeing Board 

REPORT 
Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) Health Inequalities 
Progress Update – Children & Young People and Adults 

CONTRIBUTORS 
Director of Public Health, 
London Borough of Lewisham 

Item No: 4 

CLASS Part 1 (Open) Date: 11th July 2019 

 
 
1. Purpose 
 
1.1. To provide an update to the Board on developments that have taken place over the 

past year to address Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) health inequalities in 
Lewisham, and to request Board approval for the suggested approach and planned 
actions for 2019/20 onwards.  
 

1.2. The activity presented in this report covers the wide range of services, programmes, 
projects and initiatives that are commissioned and/or delivered via Lewisham Council, 
Lewisham CCG and its partners. The activity presented covers both Children & Young 
People (CYP) and adults to give an overview of progress to date for both population 
groups. 

 
2. Recommendation/s 
 
2.1. Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board are recommended to: 
 

 Note the progress made in the past year across CYP and adults, specifically around 
addressing mental health inequalities for BAME communities in Lewisham. 

 Approve the approach and planned actions identified for 2019/20 onwards. 
 
3. Strategic Context 
 
3.1. The Health and Social Care Act 2012 required the creation of statutory Health and 

Wellbeing Boards in every upper tier local authority. By assembling key leaders from 
the local health and care system, the principle purpose of the Health and Wellbeing 
Boards is to improve health and wellbeing and reduce health inequalities for local 
residents.  
 

3.2. The activity of the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) is focussed on delivering the 
strategic vision for Lewisham as established in Lewisham’s Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy.  
 

3.3. The work of the Board directly contributes to the Council’s new Corporate Strategy. 
Specifically Priority 5 – Delivering and Defending: Health, Social Care and Support – 
Ensuring everyone receives the health, mental health, social care and support 
services they need. 

 
 
 
 

Page 14



4. Background 
 
4.1. In July 2018 the HWB agreed that the main area of focus for the Board should be 

tackling health inequalities, with an initial focus on health inequalities for BAME 
communities in Lewisham.  
 

4.2. Following analysis undertaken by a sub group of the Board, three priority areas were 
identified through which the Board could play a significant role in addressing the 
widest gaps in BAME health inequalities. The areas identified were: mental health; 
obesity; and cancer.  
 

4.3. The work of the Board has focused on the area of mental health in this first year and a 
strategic approach has been considered across both Children and Young People 
(CYP) and Adults. 
 

4.4. The approaches and commissioning for these two population groups are carried out 
by separate teams across the council and CCG. However, there is a clear 
understanding that reducing mental health inequalities amongst BAME communities in 
Lewisham requires an integrated approach to maximise resources and improve mental 
health and wellbeing outcomes. 

 
5. Activity To Date (Adults) 
 
5.1. BAME Mental Health Summit (October 2018) 
 
5.1.1. A mental health summit for BAME communities in Lewisham was held last year to 

start a community conversation about how Lewisham could develop a community-led 
approach to address BAME mental health inequalities. This followed the Thrive LDN 
community conversation around mental health and wellbeing that was held in 
Lewisham earlier in the year.  
 

5.1.2. The following themes arose from the community discussions: 
 

 Stigma – the widespread stigma around mental health issues need to be addressed. 
 

 Communication – improved communication around what is already happening in 
terms of both community and statutory services is needed. 
 

 Early intervention –the need for earlier intervention with young people, via education 
and other routes to prevent mental ill health. 

 
 Genuine co-production – a clear mechanism is needed for genuine dialogue and co-

production with BME communities for both mental and physical health 
 

 Cultural competence of services – need further understanding of the need for and 
the benefits of culturally specific services, including the potential benefits of seeing a 
professional from a similar background to your own. 

 
5.1.3. The specific recommendations that followed for the HWB were: 
 

 Endorse and support stigma and discrimination reduction activities such as the Time 
to Change campaign. 

 

Page 15



 Require the Lewisham Health and Care Partners to develop mechanisms for genuine 
co-production with members of the BAME communities in Lewisham to support 
commissioning of all-age mental health services. 

 
 Consider how a stronger focus on prevention and early intervention for mental health 

(particularly with BAME communities) can be achieved. 
 
5.2. HWB Workshop: Improving Health Outcomes For BAME Communities In 

Lewisham (March 2019) 
 
5.2.1. A 90 minute workshop for senior representatives from Lewisham’s Health & Social 

care providers, community organisations and the BME Network was subsequently 
held, planned and facilitated by a member of the BME network, to fulfil 
recommendations arising from the summit, particularly around developing a 
mechanism for genuine co-production for BAME communities.  
 

5.2.2. The recommendations from this follow-up workshop focused on resourcing BAME 
participation, exploration of how to better empower BAME communities as part of 
decision-making processes and an agreement by all that this was the start of a 
process to develop a long-term sustainable co-production approach to address health 
inequalities – in both physical and mental health.  
 

5.2.3. The Executive Director of Community Services subsequently met with representatives 
from the BME network to continue to develop the Lewisham approach. Commissioning 
leads and BME network representatives are now in the process of agreeing the initial 
stages this approach specifically for BAME adult’s mental health in the first instance.  

 
5.3. Mental Health Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) (Completed June 2019) 
 
5.3.1. The topic of mental health was selected as a priority area by the JSNA Steering group 

in 2018. A comprehensive needs assessment has been undertaken by Public Health 
focusing on adult’s mental health and is due to be made publicly available shortly.  An 
integral part of this has been a series of recommendations focusing on inequalities in 
BAME adult mental health, which include the following: 

 
 More targeted support for protected characteristic groups and groups we know are at 

higher risk of developing mental health conditions (BAME, refugees and asylum 
seekers, men, older people, LGBT+ population, homeless people, people with 
substance/alcohol misuse issues, unemployed people, carers, and people in the 
criminal justice system) 

 Continued to work towards reducing BAME mental health inequalities 
 A continued focus on prevention and early intervention 
 Improving the physical health of people with severe mental illness 

 
5.3.2. A plan of action to address the JSNA recommendations will be developed with the 

Joint Commissioning Group (JCG) and Mental Health Provider Alliance, which will 
work alongside aforementioned work to develop a co-production approach for BAME 
adult’s mental health.   

  
5.4. Good Practice Models Research (May 2019) 
 
5.4.1. Networking with other London boroughs to research models of good practice for co-

production to address health inequalities has been taking place. Additional desktop 

Page 16



research to identify key learning points from other co-production initiatives are also 
being collated in order to transfer aspects of any successful models to Lewisham.  

 
5.5. Lewisham Suicide Prevention Strategy Implementation  
 
5.5.1. The Suicide Prevention Strategy was agreed by the HWB in March 2019 The action 

plan is currently being implemented.  The number of completed suicides among BAME 
Lewisham residents is not known at present due to lack of available data, however 
younger men (24-45) are have been identified as a priority risk group in Lewisham, 
which includes men from BAME communities. A launch of the Suicide Prevention 
Strategy is planned for September 2019, bringing together local professionals, key 
stakeholders as well as local residents. The specific application of the strategy to the 
needs of BAME communities around self-harm and suicide will be an important part of 
the strategy’s implementation.  

 
6. Activity To Date (Children & Young People) 
 
6.1. The CYP Joint Commissioning team established a school focused mental health 

participation group which the young people called Inspire.  All members of the group 
are Black, Asian, Minority Ethnic and Refugee (BAMER) and they work together to 
develop an approach to reduce mental health stigma and strengthen peer to peer 
support in schools (Nov 2018).  
 

6.2. The Anna Freud Centre awarded Lewisham CAMHS with the ‘Best Participation in 
Service’ award.  The given reasons for selecting Lewisham included the Young 
Advisory Group (YAG) tips for staff that can be seen around the offices and the 
Alchemy BAME & LGBTQ+ Groups.(2017/18 awards). 

 
6.3. The CAMHS-led participation group, Alchemy, designed and delivered cultural 

awareness training to CAMHS 
staff.  They used their 
knowledge of inequality together 
with their lived experience to 
help CAMHS staff to better tailor 
services to their needs.   
 

6.4. Alchemy was commissioned for 
a further year to extend the co-
produced BAME and LGBTQ groups to children and young people beyond the scope 
of CAMHS creating an increased psychology presence in schools.  The new 
specification includes a focus on peer-to-peer support and increased emotional 
literacy in schools (March 2019). 

 
6.5. A relationship has been brokered between the National Maritime Museum and the two 

CAMHS participation groups; the Young Advisory Group and Alchemy.  The project 
involved young people with mental health problems designing and making mental 
health first aid kits for refugee families arriving in Lewisham. (June 2019) 

 
6.6. The CYP Joint Commissioning team have an on-going consultative relationship with 

Parent ENGage, the Young Mayors Advisors and the Looked after Children Council. 
 
6.7. An Expression of Interest (EOI) has been submitted to the Department of Education 

for funding for two Mental Health Support Teams (MHST).  The teams would deliver 

 “I’ve had a lot of experience of CAMHS and 

all kinds of clinicians… to be honest my 

favourite clinician was one that just 

acknowledged that I was black and she was 

white” 

Young Person, Alchemy 

 

Youn 

 

 
Young person, year 10, Inspire 

Page 17



interventions to CYP with mild to moderate needs in schools.  Children, young people 
and local residents’ voices were at the centre of Lewisham’s MHST proposal, which 
was predicated on the following three inequality drivers: Targeting schools affected by 
poverty and crime; Reducing pupil exclusion: Targeting and tailoring services for 
BAMER CYP (March 2019). 
 

6.8. Recruitment of Healthy Schools Officer to directly support Lewisham schools 
achieving Healthy School status which incorporates a whole  school approach to 
improving emotional wellbeing and mental health (June 2019). 

 
7. Planned Approach & Actions 
 
7.1. Planned Approach 
 
7.1.1. There have been significant developments in promoting participation and co-

production alongside a greater emphasis on targeting and tailoring services to BAME 
CYP and adults over the last 12 months. 
 

7.1.2. The learning gained over the last year across CYP and adults will be enhanced further 
though more integration of the two work streams where relevant.  It is recognised that 
the needs of the BAME communities span both CYP and adults.  People live as part of 
communities and family units and engagement and co-production with communities 
needs to recognise this. 
 

7.1.3. There is an acknowledgement of the opportunities that can potentially be missed with 
early intervention approaches when mental health, or indeed any health topic, is 
considered independently across these two population groups.   
 

7.1.4. Obtaining, scrutinising and communicating data relating to mental health services for 
the BAME populations will be key to further developments within the commissioning 
cycle. 
 

7.1.5. The on-going relationship between the CYP Joint Commissioning Team, the Adult 
Joint Commissioning Team and a range of participation groups will be necessary for 
authentic co-production and young person/family - led services. Establishing the most 
effective forms of co-production with the BAME community is critical, recognising that 
a blend of many different approaches may be needed. 

 
7.2. Planned Actions 2019/20 
 
7.2.1. A number of actions have been identified specifically relating to CYP:  
 

 Increasing participation and co-production is one of the eight local priorities within 
Lewisham’s CAMHS Transformation Plan 2018.  This has driven the establishment of 
a new, commissioner-led, mental health participation group alongside a re-focused 
CAMHS-led participation group, with a particular focus on BAME children and young 
people (CYP). 

 
 A member-led review and an NHS Intensive Support Team review of the mental 

health pathway for children and young people in Lewisham were undertaken. Both 
reviews highlighted certain strengths, such as professional commitment to this work, 
and of specific areas of good practice such as the neuro-developmental pathway.  
However, it was noted that more could be done to promote seamless pathways and 

Page 18



target and tailor services to the needs of CYP from BAMER backgrounds. The 
recommendations are currently being progressed by the CYP commissioning team. 
(2018 and early 2019) 

 
 The reviews generated 32 recommendations, around which joint commissioners have 

built a robust improvement plan.  The plan is being monitored by NHS England and 
by the CYP Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing Board on behalf of the Local 
Authority.  Many of these recommendations have implications for the Early Help 
Review, which is running alongside improvement plan. 

 
7.2.2. A number of priority areas have been identified for development as part of this 

improvement plan.  These include: 
 

 Exploring using LA CAMHS funding to develop an approach to work specifically with 
young people at risk of exclusion, paying particular attention to the needs of BAME 
young people. 
  

 A school-based pilot initiative involving the development of a  young person peer-to-
peer support model (including training for young people, problem solving booths and 
supervision for the peers providing support. 

 
 Working with voluntary and community sector providers such as youth services, to 

enhance wellbeing and resilience for young people in community settings. 
 

 Undertake a deep dive into gaps in the data in relation to the extent to which different 
demographic groups are accessing mental health support, potentially through a 
sampling approach. This should include breakdown by ethnicity across services. 

 
7.2.3. A number of actions have been identified specifically for adults: 
 

 To build upon community and service user participation to co-design local service and 
care pathways through the Mental Health Provider Alliance Development process. 

 
 To ensure that the increase in Lived Experience workers (Peer Support, etc.) is 

representative of the local community and where necessary adopt a targeted 
recruitment approach/campaign.  

 
 The Mental Health Alliance has broadly accepted the findings and recommendations 

from the JSNA and will seek incorporate these into ongoing development plans.  
 

7.2.4. A number of actions have been identified across both CYP and adults:  
 

 To follow up work with the BME Network to prioritise and develop an action plan over 
the next 3 years. 

 
 To develop a co-production participation infrastructure to engage BAME communities 

in commissioning decisions that impact upon emotional wellbeing and mental health. 
 

 To develop a Lewisham approach that promotes the interface between adult and CYP 
services especially: 

o For parents experiencing mental health difficulties, supporting them in the 
context of their family environment 

Page 19



o For CYP experiencing mental health difficulties, supporting them in the context 
of their family and peer environment. 

 
 To continue the development of the Lewisham Time to Change Hub in conjunction 

with promoting awareness of mental health and wellbeing among BAME communities 
in Lewisham.  

 
8. Financial Implications 
 
8.1. The various work described within the report that is the responsibility of the Council 

will be met from existing revenue budgets in the Community Services and Children 
and Young People Directorates. 

 
9. Legal Implications 
 
9.1. Members of the Board are reminded of their responsibilities to carry out statutory 

functions of the Health and Wellbeing Board under the Health and Social Care Act 
2012. Activities of the Board include, but may not be limited to the following: 

 
 To encourage persons who arrange for the provision of any health or social services in 

the area to work in an integrated manner, for the purpose of advancing the health and 
wellbeing of the area. 

 To provide such advice, assistance or other support as its thinks appropriate for the 
purpose of encouraging the making of arrangements under Section 75 NHS Act 2006 
in connection with the provision of such services. 

 To encourage persons who arrange for the provision of health related services in its 
area to work closely with the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

 To prepare Joint Strategic Needs Assessments (as set out in Section 116 Local 
Government Public Involvement in Health Act 2007). 

 To give opinion to the Council on whether the Council is discharging its duty to have 
regard to any JSNA and any joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy prepared in the 
exercise of its functions. 

 To exercise any Council function which the Council delegates to the Health and 
Wellbeing Board, save that it may not exercise the Council’s functions under Section 
244 NHS Act 2006. 

 
10. Crime and Disorder Implications 
 
10.1. There are no Crime and Disorder Implications from this report. 
 
11. Equalities Implications 
 
11.1. The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality duty (the 

equality duty or the duty). It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation.  

 
11.2. In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the 

need to:  
 

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct 
prohibited by the Act.  

Page 20



 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic 
and those who do not.  

 Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those 
who do not.  

 
11.3. The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be attached to it is a 

matter for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of relevance and proportionality. It is 
not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination, advance equality of 
opportunity or foster good relations.  

 
11.4. The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently issued Technical Guidance 

on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance entitled “Equality Act 2010 
Services, Public Functions & Associations Statutory Code of Practice”. The Council 
must have regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty and attention 
is drawn to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the equality duty. The Technical 
Guidance also covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty. This includes 
steps that are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The guidance does 
not have statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so 
without compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and the 
technical guidance can be found at: http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-
policy/equalityact/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/  

 
11.5. The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously issued five 

guides for public authorities in England giving advice on the equality duty:  
 

1. The essential guide to the public sector equality duty  
2. Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making  
3. Engagement and the equality duty  
4. Equality objectives and the equality duty  
5. Equality information and the equality duty  

 
11.6. The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty requirements including 

the general equality duty, the specific duties and who they apply to. It covers what 
public authorities should do to meet the duty, including steps that are legally required, 
as well as recommended actions. The other four documents provide more detailed 
guidance on key areas and advice on good practice. Further information and 
resources are available at: http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-
guidance/publicsector-equality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/ 

 
12. Environmental Implications 
 
12.1. There are no environmental implications from this report. 
 
13. Conclusion 
 
13.1. Reducing BAME mental health inequalities is a priority area across all ages within 

Lewisham Council.  A variety of different work has already been implemented and 
plans are in place for further work in 2019/20 and beyond.  The longer term aspiration 
is for the consideration of BAME health inequalities to be a routine consideration in all 
aspects of commissioning local services and programmes for the Lewisham 
population.  

 
 

Page 21

http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equalityact/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equalityact/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/


If you have any difficulty in opening the links above or those within the body of the report, 
please contact Stewart Weaver-Snellgrove (stewart.weaver-snellgrove@lewisham.gov.uk; 
020 8314 9308), who will assist. 
 
If there are any queries on this report please contact Catherine Mbema, Public Health, 
Lewisham Council, on 0208 314 4937, or by email at: catherine.mbema@lewisham.gov.uk. 
 

 

Page 22

mailto:stewart.weaver-snellgrove@lewisham.gov.uk
mailto:catherine.mbema@lewisham.gov.uk


BAME HEALTH INEQUALITIES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 

Ref 
No.  

Action  Owner/Governance  Timescale Progress  RAG  

Children and Young People (CYP) 

1.  Establish mental health participation group 
with a focus on BAME children and young 
people 

LBL CYP 
commissioning team 
/ CYP Mental Health 
and Emotional 
Wellbeing Board  

June 2019 Specific school 
work will 
commence In 
October 2019 

 

2.  Response to recommendations from 
member-led review and NHS intensive 
support team review of mental health 
pathway for CYP in Lewisham  

LBL CYP 
commissioning team 
/ CYP Mental Health 
and Emotional 
Wellbeing Board 

April 2019 – 
March 2021 

32 
recommendations 
with short, 
medium and long 
term actions 

 

Adults  

3.  Work to ensure that there is  community and 
service user participation in co-design of 
local service and care pathways  

Adults Mental 
Health Provider 
Alliance  

September 
2019  

  

4.  Implementation of recommendations from 
the Adults Mental Health JSNA  

Adults Mental 
Health Provider 
Alliance  

August 2019    

5.  Work to ensure that Lived Experience 
workers are ethnically representative of the 
Lewisham population  

Adults Mental 
Health Provider 
Alliance  

September 
2019 (Linked to 
external 
funding bids)  

  

6.  To co-produce approaches to engagement 
and on-ongoing dialogue as component of 
the Alliance Engagement & involvement 
strategy 

Adults Mental 
Health Provider 
Alliance 

September 
2019  

  

  

P
age 23



CYP and Adults   

7.  To work with the Lewisham BAME Health 
Network to continue to develop this action 
plan for the next 3 years  

CYP Mental Health 
and Emotional 
Wellbeing 
board/Adults Mental 
Health Provider 
Alliance/Public 
Health  

October 2019    

8.  To develop a co-production infrastructure 
to engage Lewisham BAME communities 
in commissioning decisions that impact 
upon mental health and emotional 
wellbeing   

CYP Mental Health 
and Emotional 
Wellbeing 
board/Adults Mental 
Health Provider 
Alliance/Public 
Health  

October 2019    

9.  To develop a Lewisham approach to 
promote the interface between adult and 
CYP mental health services  

CYP Mental Health 
and Emotional 
Wellbeing 
board/Adults Mental 
Health Provider 
Alliance  

October 2019    

10.  To develop the Time to Change Hub to 
include a focus on reducing stigma in 
BAME communities in Lewisham  

Lewisham Public 
Health/Adults 
Mental Health 
Commissioning 
Team/Adults Mental 
Health Provider 
Alliance  

September 
2019  

The Hub has 
already been 
established but 
work to focus on 
reducing stigma 
in BAME 
communities to 
be developed.  

 

 

P
age 24



1 
 

Healthier Communities Select Committee 

REPORT 
Adult Social Care Cuts Proposals – Summary Of Strengths & 
Asset Based Approaches 

KEY DECISION No Item No: 4 

WARD All 

CONTRIBUTORS Director of Operations, Adult Social Care 

CLASS Part 1 Date: 3rd September 2019 

 
1. Purpose 
 
1.1. The purpose of this report is to provide a summary of strengths and asset 

based approaches to managing demand and resources across Adult Social 
Care, which underpins the delivery of cuts proposals COM1a and COM2a 
(totalling £1.5m). 

 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1. The Healthier Communities Select Committee is recommended: 
 

 To note the content of this report (in the context of the main Adult Social Care 
cuts proposal proforma) 

 
3. Policy Context 
 
3.1. The content of this report is consistent with the Council’s corporate priorities 

(as set out in the new Corporate Strategy 2018-22), particularly: 
 

 Delivering and defending: health, social care and support – ensuring everyone 
receives the health, mental health, social care and support services they need 

 
3.2. It is also consistent with the Lewisham Health & Care Partnership’s vision to 

achieve a viable and sustainable ‘one Lewisham health and care system’ by 
2020/21, which will: 
 

 Enable our local population to maintain and improve their physical and mental 
wellbeing  

 Keep people living independent and fulfilled lives  
 Reduce inequalities and provide services which meet the needs of our diverse 

community  
 Provide access to person-centred, evidence-informed, high quality, proactive 

and cost-effective care when it is needed 
 
3.3. As part of this work, Adult Social Care have identified three priority areas: 

Page 25

Agenda Item 4



2 
 

 Prevention and self-management – supporting people to remain independent 
by utilising the widest amount of support and resources available to each 
individual 

 Assessing, planning and arranging care – embedding an asset based 
approach across social care practice and commissioning that leads to 
improvements in assessments, outcomes and utilisation of resources, 
ensuring that care and support plans are jointly developed and personalised, 
taking into account the person’s health, wellbeing, care and support needs 

 Quality Assurance & Safeguarding – ensuring that there are a wide range of  
sustainable, high-quality services delivered from a vibrant, high-quality care 
and support market, working in partnership with key stakeholders to ensure 
that safeguarding vulnerable people from harm is everyone’s priority 

 
4. Defining Strengths & Asset Based Approaches 
 
4.1. As in this report, the terms ‘strengths based approach’ and ‘asset based 

approach’ are often used interchangeably or jointly in reference to social work 
practice which places individuals, families and communities at the heart of 
care and wellbeing. Adopting a strengths and asset based approach to any 
intervention (and particularly to initial contact and assessment) is one of the 
critical principles underpinning the Care Act 2014, together with co-production, 
personalisation and the need to work preventatively. The Act requires local 
authorities to ‘consider the person’s own strengths and capabilities, and what 
support might be available from their wider support network or within the 
community to help’ in considering ‘what else other than the provision of care 
and support might assist the person in meeting the outcomes they want to 
achieve’. 

 
4.2. Strengths and asset based approaches are not a new concept, but they 

represent a change to the established care management model, where 
individuals are assessed in order to identify deficits (i.e. needs) and then 
offered a traditional service (such as home care) to address these – an 
approach regarded by many professionals as creating a dependency on social 
care services. Instead, local authorities should work collaboratively with 
individuals to identify their strengths – including personal attitudes and 
motivations, social networks and community resources – and maximise those 
strengths to enable them to achieve their desired outcomes, thereby meeting 
their needs and improving or maintaining their wellbeing. The objective of the 
strengths-based approach is to protect the individual’s independence, 
resilience, ability to make choices and wellbeing. Supporting the person’s 
strengths can help address needs (whether or not they are eligible) for support 
in a way that allows the person to lead, and be in control of, an ordinary and 
independent day-to-day life as much as possible. It may also help delay the 
development of further needs. 

 
4.3. There are a number of different methodologies that sit under the umbrella of 

the strengths and asset based approach (including ‘three conversations’, peer 
support, local area coordination, care navigators and social prescribing), but 
these are not prescriptive and there is no ‘one size fits all’ model 

Page 26



3 
 

(interpretations vary and are shaped according to local circumstances and 
needs) – as a result, they may not lend themselves to being easily replicated. 
 

4.4. A cultural shift is also required at all levels – there needs to be commitment 
from senior managers to changing the role of Adult Social Care and a clear 
direction for staff, accompanied by a freedom to innovate and ‘own’ the 
approach. This shift also extends to residents as strengths and asset based 
approaches may not always meet their initial expectations about social care 
services. Of course achieving cultural shift is not straightforward or easily 
mandated, but the benefits of working in this personalised and strengths 
based approach far outweigh the investment in delivering this change. 
 

4.5. In addition, strengths and asset based approaches are dependent on there 
being a wide-ranging ‘menu of support’ that individuals can access, both from 
Council-run or commissioned universal services and the voluntary & 
community sector. Alongside this, social workers need to develop and 
maintain an in-depth knowledge of all local community resources, so that they 
are able to link individuals with the right support. 
 

4.6. We have benchmarked with good practice from a number of other local 
authorities, as described in Appendix 1, and are implementing strengths and 
asset based approaches in order to promote and support self-management 
and independence wherever possible. 

 
5. Managing Demand & Ensuring Financial Sustainability 
 
5.1. Preventing, reducing or delaying the need for care, where feasible, is a key 

element of the 2014 Care Act, which states that ‘effective interventions at the 
right time can stop needs from escalating, and help people maintain their 
independence for longer’.  

 
5.2. According to the Kings Fund1, two complementary trends in ageing are likely 

to drive a significant amount of future extra demand for Adult Social Care 
services:  

 
 The demographic ‘bulge’ of people – the baby boomer generation – born in 

the twenty or so years after the second world war, who are now reaching 
retirement in the first decades of the 21st century  

 The increased longevity of that population, with life expectancy in Lewisham at 
birth now 79 years for men and 83.7 years for women (Office for National 
Statistics (ONS). Despite the recent slowdown in improvements in mortality 
rates, the ONS predicts that life expectancy will continue to rise, though at a 
slower rate than previously. The average ‘healthy life’ for men in Lewisham is 
61.9 years and for women is 64.3 years. As people progress beyond these 
‘healthy years’, there is a marked increase in demand on both health and 
social care services 

 

                                                
1 https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/sites/default/files/2018-12/Key-challenges-facing-the-adult-social-care-
sector-in-England.pdf 

Page 27

https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/sites/default/files/2018-12/Key-challenges-facing-the-adult-social-care-sector-in-England.pdf
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/sites/default/files/2018-12/Key-challenges-facing-the-adult-social-care-sector-in-England.pdf


4 
 

5.3. By 2066, the ONS estimates that there will be a further 8.6 million UK 
residents aged 65 years and over, taking the total to 20.4 million and making 
up over a quarter of the total population. The fastest increase is forecast in the 
85 years and over age group. As a consequence, as the population ages, it 
has been predicted that by 2030 there will be 45% more people living with 
diabetes, 50% more people living with arthritis, coronary heart disease or 
stroke and 80% more people (nearly 2 million in total) living with dementia 
(Select Committee on Public Service and Demographic Change 2013). 
 

5.4. Significant numbers of local authorities now say they are adopting strengths 
and asset based approaches as way of managing demand and resources 
across Adult Social Care. In 2018, the Association of Directors of Adults’ 
Social Services (ADASS) annual budget survey found that 82% of directors 
saw developing asset-based and self-help approaches to reduce the numbers 
of people needing long-term care as ’very important’, with 33% of planned 
savings for the 2018-19 financial year expected to come from this route. 

 
6. Implementation Of Strengths & Asset Based Approaches In Lewisham 
 
6.1. Ensuring individuals have access to appropriate preventative services such as 

social prescribing can reduce their need to contact Adult Social Care. This 
approach is well established in GP practices within the primary care networks, 
who work in partnership with a range of organisations (including SAIL, 
Community Connections and Sydenham Garden). 

 
First Point Of Contact (SCAIT) 
 
6.2. All initial contacts to Adult Social Care (which can come from a range of 

sources, such as members of the public, family members and health partners 
e.g. GPs and local hospitals) are received by the Social Care Advice & 
Information Team (SCAIT) – the skills mix of this team includes Information & 
Advice Officers, Social Workers, Occupational Therapists and Support 
Planners. Following an end-to-end review of the Adult Social Care pathway, 
we are increasing staff resources and the skill mix at the first point of contact 
and have redesigned business processes around prevention and the ‘three 
conversations’ model.2 Equipment surgeries have also been established to 
support individuals to remain independent at this early stage of contact. 
 

6.3. The ‘three conversations’ model involves a radical change in approach by 
putting empowerment and independence at the heart of interactions with 
individuals. It requires practitioners to: 
 

 Work with individuals, not do things to them 
 Never plan long-term care when an individual is in crisis 
 Listen hard to understand the crisis and help to resolve it 
 Focus on what is important to the person, explored in conversations 1 and 2, 

before considering conversation 3 (longer-term planning) 
 Stay involved to provide consistent support and avoid handovers 

                                                
2 More information about the ‘three conversations’ model can be found here: 
http://partners4change.co.uk/the-three-conversations/. 

Page 28

http://partners4change.co.uk/the-three-conversations/


5 
 

 Work closely with community partners and maximise individuals’ links to 
community resources 
 

6.4. As a result, staff within SCAIT are moving away from a structured ‘interview’ 
which is dominated by pre-determined questions to having conversations and 
making connections with individuals seeking support. This has necessitated a 
significant cultural shift in practice for staff who deal with contacts and 
assessments, which is being supported by a learning and development 
programme led by the Principal Social Worker (PSW).  

 
6.5. Since we have started to use this approach, there has been a significant 

increase in the number of contacts that have been resolved by SCAIT, thus 
avoiding ‘pulling people’ into a prolonged and at times bureaucratic process 
while at the same time resolving their issues at the earliest opportunity. 
Essentially, the more focused the information and solutions provided at this 
early stage, the less likely it is that an ongoing referral to adult social care is 
required. As the service moves forward with this approach, so the hope is that 
the ongoing referral rate will reduce further. This in turn enables social care 
teams to focus on working with people with more complex needs. 

 

 
 
6.6. The Community Connections service (run by a consortium of voluntary sector 

organisations) is established in each of the four neighbourhoods. Each 
neighbourhood has a community development worker, who works proactively 
with the local network and groups to help develop opportunities and capacity 
in response to the presenting enquiry. Access to universal services is 
promoted and supported, particularly in relation to promoting well-being for 
both service users and family carers. Family carers are an important 
contribution to the strength based approach.  Taking account of the emotional 
stresses and practical needs of family carers is therefore an important element 
to this approach. 
 

6.7. The approach is also of particular relevance to those people who may not 
always receive or require formal care. An example of this can be seen with 
those people who experience low-level mental ill health, active older people 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

Total New Contacts New Contacts That Stopped At Signposting

Page 29



6 
 

who are isolated and people with a low or moderate learning disability. In 
these circumstances, participation in community life, access to volunteering or 
employment opportunities where there is support in place for the individual 
and it is cost effective for the employer, is often a positive experience that 
supports individuals with independence and their wellbeing. There is an 
opportunity here for the Council and its ‘Lewisham Deal’ partners (as large 
employers in the borough) to look at how we can together identify posts that 
can be job-carved and tailored so that they can be offered to individuals with 
disabilities or mental health needs. 
 

6.8. Our approach to developing the provider market, making use of universal 
services and opportunities provided by the voluntary sector ensures that the 
strength and asset based approach is an operational reality and makes a 
meaningful contribution to supporting people to remain at home as 
independently as possible. We are undertaking a mapping exercise to ensure 
that the availability and diversity of support available reflects the needs 
identified from the conversations and assessment we undertake in partnership 
with individuals who make contact with Adult Social Care. 

 
Digital Solutions 
 
6.9. The development and delivery of successful, coordinated digital solutions 

across the local health and care spectrum is essential to help manage future 
demand. Digital platforms allow for the best possible use of resources as they 
can reach the greatest number. There are challenges in this and not all 
residents, particularly the most elderly, have digital devices and capabilities. 
However, evidence suggests this is changing and digital access is becoming 
more widespread. Despite this, non-digital solutions must continue for the near 
future. 

 
6.10. There are a number of local examples that highlight the success of utilising 

digital technology: 
 

Digital 
Technology 

What Does It Do? 
Who Is It For & How Do 

They Benefit? 
What Equipment 

Is Needed? 

Sign Live App 

A communication app that 
allows British Sign 

Language users to contact 
the Council and other 
services remotely for 

advice and information via 
a face-to-face interpreter 

Residents who 
communicate with British 
Sign Language users can 
contact the Council from 

home 

Smart phone, 
tablet, laptop 

Telecare 

A number of home-
installed gadgets that are 

connected to a remote 
monitoring system which 
promotes independence 

Enables those who are 
disabled or have dementia 

to live securely at home 

Sensors, phone 
line, access to the 
Council Link Line 
monitoring system 

Health Apps 
Takes a preventative 

approach to health and 
well-being 

All residents of the 
borough can get 

immediate relevant advice 

Smart phone, 
tablet, PC, laptop 

Page 30



7 
 

and information to do with 
their problem 

Online Health 
& Care 

Directory 

One place on the Council 
website for Lewisham-

based advice and 
information about to 
support, groups and 

classes in the borough 
(in development) 

Anyone looking for 
information about a 

particular aspect of care, 
health and wellbeing 

Smart phone, 
tablet, PC, laptop 

Online 
Wellbeing  

Forms 

Anyone in the borough 
interested in finding out 

more about help with care, 
health and wellbeing.  
Also able to submit a 
request for help to the 

Council (in development) 

Any adult resident 
needing help with care, 

health and wellbeing 

Smart phone, 
tablet, PC, laptop 

Online Carer 
Forms 

Any carer in the borough 
who wants to get more 

information about being a 
carer. Also able to submit 
more detailed information 
to the Council about their 
situation (in development) 

Any adult resident 
needing help as a carer 

Smart phone, 
tablet, PC, laptop 

Connect Care 

This is a local care record 
that shows what health 
and care information is 
available for individuals 
and allows both health 

and care to work together 
in partnership to deliver 

better care 

All staff working across 
health, mental health and 
adult social care, enabling 
closer working between 

professionals 

Smart phone, 
tablet, PC, laptop 

 
6.11. To support the application of digital usage in the community, there is a ‘Go On’ 

project which positively encourages older people and other vulnerable groups 
to improve their use of technology. An example of this has been the invitations 
to ‘Techy Tea Parties’, which were held in conjunction with Age UK and the 
‘Go On’ team. The online form for carers give some idea of how a carer may 
be able to get more support if they require it. Within the law, there is much 
emphasis upon the impact that caring has upon wellbeing and some 
suggestions are offered in the search results on this form. 

 
Short-Term Interventions 
 
6.12. The offer of effective short-term intervention is a key element of strengths and 

asset based approaches as it promotes independence and can reduce or 
eliminate the need for longer term solutions. Lewisham has an in-house 
enablement service led by Occupational Therapists and Physiotherapists who 
work with Enablement Officers to support individuals to establish and achieve 
personalised goals following illness, injury or a period in hospital. There is also 
a bed-based rehabilitation unit available within a care home that is largely 

Page 31



8 
 

funded by the CCG. In partnership with health colleagues, a ‘discharge to 
assess’ (D2A) model has been introduced to facilitate early discharge from an 
acute hospital, with an emphasis on supporting people to return home. This 
approach has been successful in reducing the length of stay in hospital whilst 
contributing positively to the Council’s performance in relation to delayed 
transfers of care (DTOC). It should be noted that it is clinically better for frail 
older people to return home as quickly as possible in that they are less likely 
to become more dependent. However, they need appropriate health and 
social care support at home to both reduce risk of readmission and achieve 
optimal levels of independence. 

 
6.13. However, evidence from activity and finance data highlights the cost pressure 

to the Council that comes from the reduced length of stay in hospital as 
individuals are often provided with comprehensive levels of support following 
an acute admission and shorter length of stay in hospital. It is therefore 
essential that this short-term intervention considers an individual’s strengths 
and assets and supports them to achieve their optimum level of 
independence. Performance data identifies that, at the end of this support, 
approximately 22% of recipients go on to receive long-term support (in 
comparison to the national average of 19%). Work is underway to improve this 
performance and it also underlines the importance of this approach and the 
Council’s plans to ensure there is access to enablement, rehabilitation, 
recuperation and recovery for those individuals living within the community 
who have experienced a deterioration that may not need a hospital admission, 
but can be supported by this short-term intervention and ongoing multi-
disciplinary work. 

 

 
A PRACTICE EXAMPLE OF ENABLEMENT:    
 
An older woman had a fall and broke her right leg. Following repair to the break, 
she could not wash and dress herself – she lived on one floor so getting up and 
down stairs was not a problem. After hospital discharge, the enablement service 
helped her to get up and ready for the day and returned later on to help her change 
for bed. After two weeks, she was able to do this herself and their support was no 
longer required. 
 

 
Assessment & Support Planning Within The Neighbourhoods 
 
6.14. The strength and asset based approach is embedded within the assessment 

process (for those individuals who require a full assessment and longer-term 
support plan) as well as at the first point of contact. In addition, there are 
continued reassessments of support plans using the strengths and asset 
based approach, with all care packages based on medium-term goals that 
assist individuals to move to greater independence where possible. 

  
6.15. The strengths and asset based approach is further complimented by the 

Council’s plans for integration and the ‘Care at Home’ delivery model. The 
neighbourhood teams of health and social care staff are multi-disciplinary and 

Page 32



9 
 

work closely with the primary care networks and the lead domiciliary care 
providers. It is recognised that there needs to be a well-established systems in 
place to support the domiciliary care workforce, who are often the main 
provider of care to an individual who requires assistance to live at home. Work 
is in place with community nursing colleagues to pilot a ‘trusted assessor’ 
approach. This allows nurses to adjust a care package for their patients rather 
than waiting for Adult Social Care to undertake an assessment, thereby 
reducing duplication. The neighbourhood approach is used as a platform to 
strengthen the interface with mental health services who form part of the multi-
disciplinary team within the neighbourhoods. 

 

 
PRACTICE EXAMPLES OF PARTNERSHIP WORKING 
 
An older woman with mobility difficulties, bladder problems and mild confusion was 
identified as being at high risk of a bladder infection and kidney damage. The 
nurses decided that a catheter would help and (with patient consent) this was 
fitted. They knew that she already had carers visiting once a day whilst her family 
were at work. Home Carers from the local provider were asked to stay an 
additional 15 minutes on the visits to help change the catheter. Adult Social Care 
were informed and the system was updated, with appropriate changes made to 
update the record. 
 
An older woman was found by police walking around her neighbourhood after dark 
and returned home. Adult Social Care and her family were alerted. The family, who 
lived elsewhere, already had concerns and had contacted SCAIT for advice. The 
woman agreed to assessments with her family present and the mental capacity 
assessment showed she lacked capacity for decision-making about safety during 
her night time journeys, so a best interest meeting was held to think about how to 
manage her safety. Joint working with the mental health team followed and a care 
and support plan in her own home was suggested – as a result, she received a 
dementia diagnosis and telecare home safety equipment was installed as well. 
 

 
Promoting Independence & Self-Determination For Young People Who Transition To 
Adulthood 
 
6.16. The establishment of the Transitions Team has provided an opportunity to 

work with young people at an earlier stage to support them into adulthood. 
The strengths and asset based approach is used to co-produce support plans 
with young people that consider their education, health, care and support 
needs as well as their aspirations and what they would like to achieve. In 
summary, they are tailored to reflect both abilities as well as the management 
of any care and support needs. For some individuals with complex needs, the 
support plan is used to identify small but significant outcomes that 
demonstrate achievement and maintain health and wellbeing. For individuals 
who have less complex needs but require long support, there is a focus on 
setting goals regarding tasks that promote independence and provide access 
to meaningful activity, learning and employment wherever possible. We 
recognise that we need to work with our partners to improve the local 

Page 33



10 
 

educational, employment and broader opportunities for young disabled adults 
in order to create better life opportunities closer to home. To further this way of 
working, there co-production meetings with providers, further education, health 
services and the local parent carer forum to identify how we can better support 
young people as they transition into adulthood. 

 
6.17. Much work is taking place around the whole system model of care and 

encouraging all providers in the alliance to work consistently to this objective. 
As an example, we are encouraging housing providers in the borough to 
ensure that they are also focused upon strengths based working and that they 
use the resources of their housing and welfare officers to help residents help 
themselves. We are working to build up extra care housing to support those 
with dementia. In terms of prevention, we know that the sooner that someone 
who appears to be struggling at home in a non-sustainable way is moved to 
this type of alternative community housing, the more likely they will be able to 
settle into a new independent routine. 

 
6.18. One other strand of this work is to look at how the provider care market is able 

to develop its own charter. This approach should support this fragile market 
place and allow some consistency of practice. In order to fill gaps in 
community provision and better support this new way of working, Adult Social 
Care staff work alongside the Community Development Forum. On an 
assembly basis, the intention is that different neighbourhoods will promote 
local themes to solve local issues and gaps in care. 

 
7. Legal & Equalities Implications 
 
7.1. All legal and equalities implications are outlined in the main Adult Social Care 

cuts proposal proforma. 
 
8. Financial Implications 
 
8.1. All financial implications are outlined in the main Adult Social Care cuts 

proposal proforma. 
 
9. Crime & Disorder Implications 
 
9.1. There are no specific crime & disorder implications arising from either this 

report or the main Adult Social Care cuts proposal proforma. 
 
10. Environmental Implications 
 
10.1. There are no specific environmental implications arising from either this report 

or the main Adult Social Care cuts proposal proforma. 
 

 
If there are any queries about this report, please contact Joan Hutton (Director of 
Operations, Adult Social Care) on x48364. 
 
  

Page 34



11 
 

APPENDIX 1 – Implementation Of Strengths & Asset Based Approaches In 
Other Authorities3 
 

 The ‘Wigan Deal’ is a major transformation programme that has taken place 
over the last six years. The Deal has been an attempt both to manage 
demand for services and to transform how public servants and local people 
understand their roles in creating successful, healthy communities. The 
transformation in Wigan included four main components – asset-based 
working, permission to innovate, investing in communities and place-based 
working. The implementation of asset based working was driven by a desire to 
work with local people in a different way, recognising and nurturing the 
strengths of individuals, families and communities and to build independence 
and self-reliance. This started with social care workers being trained to have 
more open-ended, exploratory conversations with their clients and has now 
become a new way of working for the Council as a whole and, increasingly, for 
other organisations across Wigan. 

 
 Cambridgeshire County Council’s Community Navigator (CN) project began in 

2012 as a key response to the views expressed by Cambridgeshire residents 
and stakeholders through the Ageing Well programme. From these events, it 
was clear that there was a wealth of community and voluntary activity that 
supported older and vulnerable adults in the county, but what was missing 
was a countywide infrastructure which linked and supported people to access 
these activities at a local level. In 2013, there were 2,451 navigations, but by 
2015 this had risen to 4,000. These navigations have been achieved with a 
95% client satisfaction rate. Client feedback shows that the main areas where 
the scheme has made a difference related to clients’ wellbeing and feelings of 
being supported. In 2015, over 90% of clients felt that CNs support had made 
a difference to them, with nearly half of clients (46%) stating that it had made a 
significant difference. 

 
 Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council’s Assistive Technology Programme 

(Safe & Well) aims to improve the outcomes for citizens by supporting them to 
live independently at home whilst also reducing social care costs. It has 
consisted of three pilot projects to date: working with adults with learning and 
physical disabilities, nursing and residential homes and early intervention with 
adults not yet eligible for funded social care. As a result of this programme, 
Blackburn has moved from supporting 60 people to over 1900 people with 
assistive technologies. 

 
 In 2014, Cambridgeshire County Council started its Transforming Lives 

programme to meet new requirements arising from the Care Act and, as part 
of this programme, the East Cambridgeshire Learning Disability Partnership 
Team began to pilot the ‘three conversation’ model in October of that year. 
The Learning Disability Partnership Team report that the model has enabled 
them to respond more quickly and provide support that is needs rather than 
systems-led, thus empowering service users to take greater control over their 
lives. 

                                                
3 See the Social Care Institute for Excellence (SCIE)’s research and practice library and the Kings 
Fund for more information on the examples provided in this report. 

Page 35

https://www.scie.org.uk/prevention/research-practice/
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/wigan-deal
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/wigan-deal


12 
 

 
 Derby City Council’s Local Area Coordinators (LAC) provide support and 

assistance to people who may be vulnerable due to age, disability, mental 
health needs or sensory impairments, but who may not meet the eligibility 
criteria for specialist services or are not yet at crisis point. They provide two 
levels of support – information, advice, advocacy and low-level support (1) and 
a longer-term relationship where they help vulnerable people describe and 
then pursue their vision of ‘a good life', making best use of the individual and 
community resources around them (2). The service was first implemented in 
two wards in Derby from 2012 to 2014, each supporting 100 individuals (of 
whom, 22 received the more intense Level 2 support). There are now seven 
Local Area Coordinators in seven wards with plans to expand the service to 
ten wards pending funding agreement. 

 
 Neighbourhood Network Schemes (NNS) are community based, locally led 

organisations that enable older people over 60 across Leeds to live 
independently and to take an active role within their own communities. Most 
are small, independent organisations run largely by and for older people and 
many have a significant amount of input from volunteers drawn from the local 
community. NNS aim to reduce social isolation, encourage contribution to (and 
involvement in) the community, promote health and wellbeing and help 
improve the quality of life for their members. They do this by providing social 
activities, a ‘gateway’ to information, advice and support and volunteering 
opportunities that respond to local needs and demands, so that each NNS will 
be different. Leeds City Council estimates that the work of NNS has prevented 
1,450 older people from going into hospital and figures collected show that 
617 have been supported after being discharged from hospital (working in 
conjunction with Age UK and British Red Cross). 

 
 Ways to Wellbeing York is a social prescribing service which aims to improve 

the health and wellbeing of people referred by GPs by working with them to 
understand their needs and identify local services offering non-medical 
interventions which may be able to help. The service is hosted by York CVS 
and funded by the City Council and currently offers access to social 
prescription referrals through four surgeries in York, which are based in areas 
of greater deprivation. The main reasons for referral are issues relating to 
emotional wellbeing, loneliness and social isolation – initially, the majority of 
referrals were older women but the gender gap is now narrowing. 

 
 The Community Team Plus service involves multi-disciplinary health and care 

teams who use a strength and asset based approach to support people across 
six Stoke on Trent localities. The service operates across three general 
practices who have shown a commitment to integrated working and has a 
three-level offer – information, advice, network building and equipment (level 
1), reablement (level 2) and long-term formal support (level 3). At the first 
level, the multi-disciplinary health and care teams often facilitate groups at 
community centres in order to support people to establish networks and build 
their resilience. 

 

Page 36



 

Healthier Communities Select Committee 

Title Select Committee work programme 

Contributor Scrutiny Manager Item 6 

Class Part 1 (open) 3 September 2019 

 
1. Purpose 

1.1 To advise members of the committee’s work programme for the 2019/20 

municipal year and to agree the agenda items for the next meeting. 

2. Summary 

2.1 The committee drew up a draft work programme at the beginning of the 

municipal year for submission to the Business Panel for consideration.  

2.2 The Business Panel will consider the proposed work programmes of each 

committee on 7 May 2019 to agree a co-ordinated overview and scrutiny work 

programme.  

2.3 The work programme can, however, be reviewed at each select committee 

meeting to take account of changing priorities. 

3. Recommendations 

3.1 The Committee is asked to: 

 consider the work programme attached at Appendix B – and discuss any 

issues arising from the programme 

 consider the items scheduled for the next meeting – and specify the 

information the committee requires to achieve its desired outcomes 

 review the forthcoming key decisions set out in Appendix C – and 

consider any items for further scrutiny 

4. The work programme 

4.1 The work programme for 2019/20 was agreed at the 4 April meeting. 

4.2 Members are asked to consider if any urgent issues have arisen that require 

scrutiny and if any items should be removed from the work programme.  

4.3 Any additional items should be considered against the prioritisation process 

before being added to the work programme (see flow chart below).  

4.4 The committee’s work programme needs to be achievable in terms of the 

meeting time available. If the committee agrees to add additional items, 

members will also need to consider which lower-priority items should be 

removed to create sufficient capacity. 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 38



 
 

4.5 Items within the committee’s work programme should be linked to the priorities 

of the Council’s Corporate Strategy.  

4.6 The Council’s Corporate Strategy for 2018-2022 was approved at full council 

in February 2019.  

4.7 The strategic priorities of the Corporate Strategy for 2018-2022 are: 

1. Open Lewisham - Lewisham is a welcoming place of safety for all, 
where we celebrate the diversity that strengthens us. 

 
2. Tackling the housing crisis - Everyone has a decent home that is 

secure and affordable. 
 
3. Giving children and young people the best start in life - Every child 

has access to an outstanding and inspiring education, and is given the 
support they need to keep them safe, well and able to achieve their full 
potential. 

 
4. Building an inclusive local economy - Everyone can access high-

quality job opportunities, with decent pay and security in our thriving 
and inclusive local economy. 

 
5. Delivering and defending: health, social care and support - 

Ensuring everyone receives the health, mental health, social care and 
support services they need. 

 
6. Making Lewisham greener - Everyone enjoys our green spaces, and 

benefits from a healthy environment as we work to protect and improve 
our local environment. 

 
7. Building safer communities - Every resident feels safe and secure 

living here as we work together towards a borough free from the fear of 
crime. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39

https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/open-lewisham
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/tackling-the-housing-crisis
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/giving-children-and-young-people-the-best-start-in-life
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/building-an-inclusive-local-economy
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/making-lewisham-greener
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/building-safer-communities


 
 
 

5. The next meeting 
 
5.1 The following items are scheduled for the next meeting on 8 October 2019. 
 
5.2 The committee is asked to specify the information and analysis it requires for each 

item, based on the outcomes it would like to achieve, so that officers are clear 
about what information they need to provide. 

 

Agenda item Review type Relevant Corporate Priority Priority 

Older adults day 
services and day 

activities  
Standard item 

Delivering and defending: 
health, social care and 

support 
High 

Public health grant 
cuts 

Standard item 
Delivering and defending: 

health, social care and 
support 

High 

CCG system reform Standard item 
Delivering and defending: 

health, social care and 
support 

High 

Pathology services 
update 

Standard item 
Delivering and defending: 

health, social care and 
support 

High 

 
 
6. Referrals 
 
6.1 Below is a tracker of the referrals the committee has made in this municipal year: 
 

Referral title Date of referral 
Date considered 

by Mayor & 
Cabinet 

Response due 
at committee 

BAME mental health 
inequalities 

14 May 2019 5 June 2019 3 September 

Older adults day 
activities and services 

consultation 
14 May 2019 5 June 2019 n/a 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40

https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=5479&Ver=4
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=5479&Ver=4
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=5479&Ver=4
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=5479&Ver=4
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=5479&Ver=4


 
7. Information items 
 
7.1 Some potential work programme items might be low priority and may only require 

a briefing report for information to be produced for the committee to note and will 
not need to be considered at a formal committee meeting. 

 
7.2 Below is a tracker of the information items received by the committee: 
 

Item Date received 

Stakeholder letter in response to CQC report on The 
Queens Road Partnership 

1 May 2019 

King’s College NHS Foundation Trust  
CQC inspection report  

(and Lewisham CCG response) 
13 June 2019 

Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust  
quality account 2018-19 

17 June 2019 

Healthwatch Lewisham 2018/19 Annual Report 4 July 2019 

Lewisham CCG, Review of the primary care Interpreting and 
Translation Service across Lambeth, Southwark and 

Lewisham 
8 July 2019 

Healthwatch Lewisham, Assessing Complaints Information 
GP Websites 

10 July 2019 

South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust  
CQC inspection report  

31 July 2019 

 
 
8. Financial Implications 

There are no financial implications arising from this report.  
 

9. Legal Implications 

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, all scrutiny select committees must 
devise and submit a work programme to the Business Panel at the start of each 
municipal year. 

 
10. Equalities Implications 

10.1 The Equality Act 2010 brought together all previous equality legislation in England, 
Scotland and Wales. The Act included a new public sector equality duty, replacing 
the separate duties relating to race, disability and gender equality. The duty came 
into force on 6 April 2011. It covers the following nine protected characteristics: 

Page 41



 
age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy 
and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

10.2 The Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to: 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 
conduct prohibited by the Act 

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not. 

 
10.3 There may be equalities implications arising from items on the work programme 

and all activities undertaken by the Select Committee will need to give due 
consideration to this. 

 
 
 
 
11. Date of next meeting 

 
The date of the next meeting is Tuesday 8 October 2019. 
 
Background Documents 

 
Lewisham Council’s Constitution 

 
Centre for Public Scrutiny: the Good Scrutiny Guide 

 
 
 

 

Page 42



Healthier Communities Select Committee work programme 2019/20

Item Type Priority Delivery 04-Apr 14-May 25-Jun 03-Sep 08-Oct 02-Dec 15-Jan 18-Mar

Budget cuts proposals Standard item High Sep

Confirmation of Chair and Vice 

Chair
Constitutional req High Apr

Leisure centre contracts
Performance 

monitoring
High Apr

Work programme 2019-20 Constitutional req High Apr

BAME mental health access Standard item High May

South London and Maudsley NHS 

Foundation Trust quality account

Performance 

monitoring
High May

Older Adults Day Activities and Day 

Services
Standard item High May

Leisure centre contracts
Performance 

monitoring
High May

Mental Health Alliance Standard item High Jun

Lewisham and Greenwich NHS 

Trust (LGT) CQC inspection

Performance 

monitoring
High Jun

Primary care CQC inspections 

update

Performance 

monitoring
High Jun

Early help review Information item High Jun

Asset-based approach to adult 

social care 
Standard item High Sep

Public health grant cuts Standard item High Oct

CCG system reform Standard item High Oct

Pathology services update Standard item High Oct

Primary Care Changes Standard item High Dec

Adult safeguarding annual report
Performance 

monitoring
High Dec

Lewisham hospital winter pressures
Performance 

monitoring
High Dec

Adult Learning Lewisham annual 

report

Performance 

monitoring
High Jan

Delivery of the Lewisham Health & 

Wellbeing priorities

Performance 

monitoring
High Jan

Lewisham People’s Parliament Standard item High Mar

Item completed

Item on-going 1) 5)

Item outstanding 2) 6)

Proposed timeframe 3) 7)

Item added 4) 8)

Meetings

Tue 25th June 2019

Tue 3rd Sept 2019

Tue 8th October 2019

Mon 2nd December 2019

Wed 15th January 2020

Wed 18th March 2020

Thu 4th April 2019

Tue 14th May 2019

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
  

 
 

 

  
FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 

 

   
 

Forward Plan September 2019 - December 2019 
 
 
This Forward Plan sets out the key decisions the Council expects to take during the next four months.  
 
Anyone wishing to make representations on a decision should submit them in writing as soon as possible to the relevant contact officer (shown as number (7) in 
the key overleaf). Any representations made less than 3 days before the meeting should be sent to Kevin Flaherty, the Local Democracy Officer, at the Council 
Offices or kevin.flaherty@lewisham.gov.uk. However the deadline will be 4pm on the working day prior to the meeting. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A “key decision”* means an executive decision which is likely to: 
 
(a) result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the service or function to which the 

decision relates; 
 

(b) be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards. 

 
 

P
age 45



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

April 2019 
 

Future options for the Parks 
Service 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Sophie 
McGeevor, Cabinet 
Member for Environment 
and Transport (job share) 
 

 
  

 

May 2019 
 

New Cross Area Framework + 
Station Opportunity Study  
Supplementary Planning 
Document 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

May 2019 
 

Approval for Single Tender 
action for Counter Fraud Hub 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

 
  

 

May 2019 
 

Performance Monitoring 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

 
  

 

June 2019 
 

Future of Youth Services 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance and 
Children's Services 
 

 
  

 

P
age 46



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

April 2019 
 

Additions to List of Locally 
Listed Buildings 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

June 2019 
 

Disposal of Downham 
Business Enterprise Centre 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

April 2019 
 

Award of Contract Tier 4 
Substance Misuse Framework 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Joani Reid, Cabinet 
Member for Safer 
Communities 
 

 
  

 

April 2019 
 

Anti-Idling Enfocement 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Brenda Dacres, Cabinet 
Member for Environment 
and Transport (job share) 
 

 
  

 

June 2019 
 

Adopting a Residents Charter 
for Lewisham 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

August 2019 
 

CRPL Appointment of Non-
Executive Director 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 

 
  

 

P
age 47



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

August 2019 
 

HMO Article 4 Direction 
Confirmation 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

August 2019 
 

Award of Contract for Tier 4 
Substance Misuse Framework 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Chris Best, Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

August 2019 
 

Alteration of SEN provision at 
Deptford Green School 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance and 
Children's Services 
 

 
  

 

August 2019 
 

Approval to Award Tender for 
Management Development 
Programmes 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

 
  

 

August 2019 
 

Learning Disability Framework 
- Extension of Contracts 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Chris Best, Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet member for 

 
  

 

P
age 48



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

August 2019 
 

Cleaning Contract Extension 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

 
  

 

August 2019 
 

Security Contract Extension 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

 
  

 

August 2019 
 

Annual Renewal Microsoft 
Enterprise License 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

 
  

 

August 2019 
 

Future of Dek Hub workspace 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Joe Dromey, 
Cabinet Member for 
Culture, Jobs and Skills 
(job share) 
 

 
  

 

August 2019 
 

Achilles Street Landlord Offer 
for Estate Regeneration Ballot 
Parts 1 & 2 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 

 
  

 

P
age 49



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

August 2019 
 

Oracle Cloud Update 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

 
  

 

August 2019 
 

Permission to Tender Violence 
against Women and Girls 
(VAWG) Service 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Joani Reid, Cabinet 
Member for Safer 
Communities 
 

 
  

 

August 2019 
 

Mental Health Accomodation 
Based Support Service 
permission to tender 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Chris Best, Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

August 2019 
 

Request for Extension and 
Variation of Family Support 
Contract 
 

01/10/19 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Business 
Panel 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance and 
Children's Services 
 

 
  

 

May 2019 
 

Statement of Accounts 
 

02/10/19 
Council 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 

 
  

 

P
age 50



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Finance and Resources 
 

August 2019 
 

Consultation: Proposal to 
Transfer Management of 5 
Community Centres to 
Lewisham Homes 
 

10/10/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Jonathan Slater, Cabinet 
Member for Community 
Sector 
 

 
  

 

June 2019 
 

Disposal of Horton Kirby 
Centre 
 

10/10/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

June 2019 
 

Disposal of Bryn Coedwig 
Outdoor Education Centre 
Alberllefeni Machynlleth 
 

10/10/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

June 2019 
 

Disposal of Tyn y Berth Centre, 
Corris, Machynlleth 
 

10/10/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

August 2019 
 

CCTV Monitoring Contract 
 

10/10/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Joani Reid, Cabinet 
Member for Safer 
Communities 
 

 
  

 

August 2019 
 

LIP annual spending 
submission for 2020/21 
 

10/10/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Cabinet Member 

 
  

 

P
age 51



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

for Environment and 
Transport (job share) 
 

August 2019 
 

Permission to Tender Obesity 
Services 
 

10/10/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Chris Best, Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

August 2019 
 

Domiciliary Care Provision 
 

10/10/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Chris Best, Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Insurance Renewal 
 

30/10/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

 
  

 

April 2019 
 

Contract Award Tier 2/3 Drug 
Services/Shared Care 
 

20/11/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Joani Reid, Cabinet 
Member for Safer 
Communities 
 

 
  

 

August 2018 
 

Lewisham Strategic Heat 
Network Business Case 
 

11/12/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 

 
  

 

P
age 52



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Mayor 
 

P
age 53



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

      

      

P
age 54


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 25 June 2019
	2 Declarations of interest
	3 Responses from Mayor and Cabinet
	4 Asset-based approach to adult social care
	6 Select Committee work programme
	06 Appendix B, work programme - 030919
	06 Appendix C, Key Decision Plan - 030919


